
 

 
 

 
Oaklands Road  
Haywards Heath  
West Sussex  
RH16 1SS 

 
Switchboard:  01444 458166 

 
DX 300320 Haywards Heath 1 

www.midsussex.gov.uk 

 

 

 

Working together for a better Mid Sussex 

 
 

29 January 2021 
 
New regulations came into effect on 4 April 2020 to allow Councils to hold meetings 
remotely via electronic means. As such, Council and Committee meetings will occur with 
appropriate Councillors participating via a remote video link, and public access via a live 
stream video through the Mid Sussex District Council’s YouTube channel.  
 
Dear Councillor, 
 
A meeting of CABINET will be held VIA REMOTE VIDEO LINK on MONDAY, 8TH FEBRUARY, 

2021 at 4.00 pm when your attendance is requested. 

 
Yours sincerely, 

KATHRYN HALL 

Chief Executive 

 

A G E N D A 
 

  Pages 
 

1.   Roll Call and Virtual Meeting Explanation. 
 

 

2.   To receive Declarations of Interest from Members in respect of any 
matter on the Agenda. 
 

 

3.   To receive apologies for absence. 
 

 

4.   To confirm Minutes of the previous meeting held on 23 November 
2020. 
 

3 - 6 

5.   To consider any items that the Leader agrees to take as urgent 
business. 
 

 

6.   Draft Corporate Plan and Budget for 2021/22. 
 

7 - 16 

7.   Budget Management 2020/21 - Progress Report April to December 
2020. 
 

17 - 40 

8.   Age UK Partnership Agreements. 
 

41 - 44 

 

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2Fchannel%2FUCW9I9y-TZXZs6jOFmOgiPyQ&data=02%7C01%7CLucinda.Joyce%40midsussex.gov.uk%7Cff0a525f3ac1490a65a808d7f294066b%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C637244589883714469&sdata=xlpzAC8QpPf5T9JSE0HB08wH%2F2KckWDWT20%2FuqJujpo%3D&reserved=0


 
 
 
To: Members of Cabinet: Councillors J Ash-Edwards (Chair), J Llewellyn-Burke (Vice-Chair), 

J Belsey, R de Mierre, S Hillier, A MacNaughton and N Webster 
 

Cabinet - 8 February 2021



 
 

 
 

Minutes of a meeting of Cabinet 
held on Monday, 23rd November, 2020 

from 4.00 pm - 4.36 pm 
 
 

Present: J Ash-Edwards (Chair) 
J Llewellyn-Burke (Vice-Chair) 

 
 

J Belsey 
R de Mierre 
 

S Hillier 
A MacNaughton 
 

N Webster 
 

 
  
 
Also Present: Councillors R Bates, A Bennett, R Clarke, A Eves, S Hatton and 

J Henwood 
 
 
 

1. ROLL CALL AND VIRTUAL MEETINGS EXPLANATION.  
 
The Leader introduced the meeting and advised that only Cabinet Members and 
Senior Officers have their cameras turned on but other Democratic Services Officers 
and observers are present at the meeting.   
 
The Leader conducted the roll call to confirm the Members present. 
 
Tom Clark, Head of Regulatory Services, advised that regulations have been 
introduced to enable the Council to hold its meetings to include those participants 
attending remotely. To ensure the smooth running of such remote meetings it has 
been necessary to amend some of the Council procedure rules and such rules have 
been amended in accordance with urgency powers in the scheme of officer 
delegation to keep the Constitution legally updated. 
 

2. TO RECEIVE DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST FROM MEMBERS IN RESPECT OF 
ANY MATTER ON THE AGENDA.  
 
No declarations were made. 
 

3. TO CONFIRM MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON THE 14TH 
SEPTEMBER 2020.  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 14 September 2020 were agreed as a correct 
record. 
 

4. TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.  
 
No apologies were received. 
 

5. TO CONSIDER ANY ITEMS THAT THE LEADER AGREES TO TAKE AS URGENT 
BUSINESS.  
 

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 3

Agenda Item 4



 
 

 
 

The Leader had no urgent business. 
 

6. BUDGET MANAGEMENT 2021-22 - HALF YEAR PROGRESS REPORT.  
 
Peter Stuart, Head of Corporate Resources introduced the report noting that the 
forecast revenue outturn overspend is approximately £1.8m after Government 
support has been factored in. This is related to a significant reduction in income as a 
result of the pandemic.  
 
He noted that treasury management income is projected as being under target by 
£206k this year, as it is the start of minimal interest returns for the period. It is 
foreseen that there may be a long period where interest income may be below target. 
He acknowledged that the forecast outturn will vary by the end of the year as things 
are changing at pace. The financial impact of the second lockdown and the 
Government’s spending review is yet to be seen but the Council remains alert to the 
changes and agile in its response. 
 
The Deputy Leader acknowledged that the Council’s prudent financial planning has 
enabled the ability to draw on reserves and noted that the Council isn’t forecasting a 
loss in ground rent income.  It was clarified that this ground rent relates to outdoor 
facilities income such as playgroups. The Deputy Leader also noted that although 
some revenue projects have been delayed, work is continuing, for example at Silver 
Birches where drainage work is now complete, at an underspend. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Community acknowledged the increase in unemployment, 
and commended Officers for the support provided to businesses particularly with the 
speed that grants have been issued.  He noted that the Council has a very productive 
relationship with the Coast to Capital Local Enterprise Partnership and Homes 
England, who are financing a significant number of the Council’s capital projects. He 
also highlighted the positive news of £45k allocated to new play equipment at King 
George’s Field, and £32k allocated for a new skatepark. 
 
The Head of Corporate Resources confirmed that the 4th tranche of the Covid 
Emergency Grant has been received from the Government and that the first 6 
months of the budgeted pay award has been paid to Officers in October.  
 
The Cabinet Member for Economic Growth noted that Officers continue to look at 
ways to mitigate the forecast net overspend and thanked Officers for the high volume 
of work that continues on capital projects despite the pandemic. In response to his 
query on the £85k bad debt rental income amount, the Head of Corporate Resources 
confirmed that retailers are asking for more deferments or holidays and the Council 
continues to negotiate.  At a certain point the debt becomes a bad debt book entry 
and there is hope that as the year progresses some of this can be recovered. The 
Cabinet Member expressed a wish for the Council to remain supportive of retailers 
wherever possible – acknowledging that there was a fine balance between support 
and doing the right thing by the public purse and the Council’s estate. 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive confirmed that it is too early to assess the impact of 
the second lockdown on parking income, however parking charges have not been 
suspended and some shops remain open for click-and-collect so the impact may not 
be as severe as earlier in the year. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Customer Services reiterated the speed at which the 
Council is working to distribute grant funding to those in need and thanked the 
Officers for their work in this respect. 

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 4



 
 

 
 

 
In relation to outdoor facilities income, the Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning 
noted that nurseries and playgroups are able to operate quite successfully with less 
restrictions if they are the sole users of a property. They are therefore in a position to 
still get full income without higher costs. 
 
The Leader concluded that although it is unprecedented times, the Council’s current 
position is not uncommon among Local Authorities and work continues to manage 
the financial challenges due to falling income and rising service costs partly with the 
use of Government grants and the use of reserves.  
 
He took the Members to the recommendations contained in the report which were 
agreed unanimously. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
The Cabinet agreed to recommend to Council for approval: 
 
(i)  that £3,862 grant income relating to Rough Sleepers Initiative be transferred 
 to Specific Reserve as detailed in paragraph 36; 
 
(ii) the variations to the Capital Programme contained in paragraph 53 in 
 accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure rule B3. 
 
And noted: 
(iii) the remainder of the report. 
 

7. PERFORMANCE MONITORING FOR THE 2ND QUARTER OF 2020/21.  
 
Emma Sheridan, Business Unit Leader, Community Services, Policy and 
Performance introduced the report and noted that despite the pandemic, the overall 
performance results are positive. 
 
In response to a query by the Deputy Leader, she confirmed that where areas are 
underperforming, it is mainly related to the pandemic, for example with the Leisure 
Centre closures or where face-to-face wellbeing services have not been able to take 
place. The Council has renegotiated targets with Public Health and realigned 
services that can be provided online. 
 
The Deputy Leader noted the positive achievement of the percentage of undisputed 
invoices paid. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Environment and Service Delivery welcomed the news that 
the amount of waste going to landfill is less than the target, especially considering the 
increased amount of people currently at home. He acknowledged that work is still 
required to increase recycling. To assist with this, he highlighted the imminent launch 
of the small waste and electrical items project and the employment of service 
redesign consultants – welcoming the possibility of the Council being able to move 
forward with a wider food waste project in the future. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Community noted that the pandemic has led to 
overperformance in some areas, particularly in a surge of antisocial behaviour 
incidents.  However, the amount of cases being resolved is positive. He noted that 
the Land Charges team has also experienced a busy period as they respond to 
personal search queries whilst the search companies are not able to carry these out 

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 5



 
 

 
 

in person at the Council Reception. He also raised concern that fewer people with 
chronic or long-term conditions are seeing their GP which will have repercussions for 
the long term. 
 
He noted that overall, the performance of the Council has been phenomenal and 
hoped that Officers are working at a sustainable pace to cover potential future 
uncertainties. The sentiment was reiterated by the Cabinet Member for Housing and 
Planning who thanked Officers for their hard work. 
 
The Leader thanked the Scrutiny Committee for Leader, Finance and Performance 
for their comments, following discussion of the report at the meeting held on 11 
November.  He concluded by noting that the percentage of indicators at green is 
higher than the same point in 2019, which is excellent considering all the additional 
responsibilities from the Government and the support needed by local businesses. 
 
The Leader took Members to the recommendations contained in the report, which 
were agreed unanimously. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
The Cabinet noted the Council’s performance and progress with Council Priority 
Projects in the second quarter of the year and identified areas where further reporting 
or information is required. 
 

 
 
 

The meeting finished at 4.36 pm 
 

Chairman 
 

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 6



 

DRAFT CORPORATE PLAN AND BUDGET FOR 2021/22 

Purpose of Report 

1. To seek Cabinet’s consideration of the draft Corporate Plan and Budget for 2021/22, 
taking account of the views expressed by the Scrutiny Committee for Leader, Finance 
and Performance at its meeting on 13th January 2021.  Cabinet is asked to consider 
this report in conjunction with Appendix 1, which is the relevant extract from the 
Scrutiny minutes. 

2. The meeting also provides the opportunity to update Cabinet with any new information 
in relation to the Settlement Announcement.  A verbal report of any very late changes 
will be given. 

Summary 

3. The budget process this year has taken place against a background of the Covid 
pandemic, leading the Council to adopt a revised Corporate Plan and financial 
strategy during September 2020.   

4. The provisional settlement announced for us on 17th December 2020 was better than 
expected.  The main improvements were the announcement of two Covid-related 
grants together worth around £1m to help our revenue position.   The New Homes 
Bonus scheme continues for one more year albeit with a reduction in legacy 
payments, but the continuation does help our general reserve position.  

5. As a result of this, the draft service and financial plans for 2021/22 considered by the 
Scrutiny Committee require only minor changes.  This enables the Council to approve 
a balanced budget with a reduced call on reserves. 

Recommendations  

6. Cabinet is requested to recommend to Council the proposals for 2021/22 as set 
out in the report to the Scrutiny Committee and as amended by this report, 
specifically: 

i. The financial outlook facing the Council given the extent of the Covid-19 
pandemic;  

ii. The proposed increase in Council Tax;  
iii. The strategy to use General Reserve to balance the budget over the short 

term;  
iv. The proposed Capital Programme; and  
v. The service commentaries and supporting summary budget tables for 

each business unit.  
Background  

7. The proposals set out in the draft Corporate Plan and Budget have been made using 
the same approach as in previous years and are the result of a process of budget and 
service review which has covered all the Council’s services.  Necessarily many of the 
income and expenditure budgets have been affected by the Covid pandemic. 

REPORT OF: HEAD OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
Contact Officer: Peter Stuart, Head of Corporate Resources 

Email:  peter.stuart@midsussex.gov.uk Tel: 01444 477315 
Wards Affected: All 
Key Decision: Yes 
Report to: Cabinet 
 8 February 2021 

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 7

Agenda Item 6

mailto:peter.stuart@midsussex.gov.uk


 

8. The draft proposals were published for a period of consultation with all Members on 
18th December 2020.  The consultation period included a meeting of the Scrutiny 
Committee for Leader, Finance and Performance on 13th January 2021 where the 
proposals were discussed in detail.  This report takes account of the comments made 
by the Committee where the proposals presented were supported.   

9. The draft Plan was prepared after the Provisional Settlement was announced which 
gave some certainty to the published figures.  We were reassured to see that the 
negative Revenue Support Grant which would have cost us some £767k was again 
eliminated from the settlement with the result that our RSG was simply zero for 
2021/22.  It has been confirmed that this is the position going forward. 

10. One area of change in the figures from those presented to the Scrutiny committee is 
for the Local Council Tax Support (LCTS) grant.  The purpose of this grant is to assist 
authorities in coping with the increase in LCTS arising from the pandemic.  Members 
will remember that awarding council tax support acts to depress the council tax base, 
and thereby the revenue raising powers of the authority. 

11. Our grant has increased by £93,811 to £184,565 and this figure now shows within the 
MTFP, alongside a minor adjustment to the collection fund surplus. 

12. A further area of change is to rephase the savings to be targeted from the service 
redesign, leadership development and digital innovations. This reflects the ongoing 
impact of the pandemic and other uncertainties. While the work will continue, its 
phasing has been altered meaning that the first stages may not yield cashable savings 
in year. Therefore, it is proposed that the £250k be re-profiled, starting in 2022/23 and 
continue thereafter.  This shows as below: 

 

 

13. This change adjusts the use of reserves as previously set out and is re-presented 
below: 

 

 31/03/2021 31/03/2022 31/03/2023 31/03/2024 31/03/2025 

General 
Reserve 

Cabinet 8 Feb  
2021 

£’000s 
6,723 

 

£’000s 
7,315 

 

£’000s 
5,562 

 

£’000 
3,382 

 

£’000 
1,359 

 

 
NB: (including Capital Programme for 21/22, NHB forecast, and RBM transfer to 
Leisure Covid Reserve and capital programme changes for 2020/21) 

 

 

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4

Revenue Spending 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

 1,362  2,416  2,317  2,172 

Additional Local Council Tax Support Grant (LCTS) for 2021/22 only (94)

Removal of savings from efficiency programme  250 

Adjustment to Collection Fund Council Tax Surplus (from £168k to £167k)  1 

 1,519  2,416  2,317  2,172 

Medium Term Financial Plan Changes since Scrutiny Committee For Leader, Finance and Performance          

13th January 2021

Deficit position Cabinet 8th February 2021

Deficit position Scrutiny Committee for Leader, Finance and 

Performance 13th January 2021

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 8



 

 

 

 

 

Year 0 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4

Revenue Spending 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Base Net Expenditure  13,984  13,967  13,888  13,942  14,023 

Benefits (119) (119) (119) (119) (119)

Drainage levies  -  -  -  -  - 

Base Revenue Spending  13,865  13,848  13,769  13,823  13,904 

Balance Unallocated 28 20 20 20 20 

Council Net Expenditure  13,893  13,868  13,789  13,843  13,924 

Contribution to Development Plan Reserve  436  243  300  300  300 

Contribution to Waste Reserve  40  -  -  -  - 

Contribution to Job Evaluation Reserve  267  392  532  594  594 

On-going pressures 2019/20  324  324  324  324 

Net pressures from Budget working papers  2,768  2,753  2,753  2,753 

Service Redesign savings (128) (128) (128) (128)

Net General inflation 135 270 405 540 

Contribution to Reserve for 21/22 Pay Award for salaries less than £24k  35  35  35  35 

Inflation Allowance for 1% Pay award from 22/23 onwards  126  252  378 

Savings from efficiency programme (250) (250) (250)

Total Revenue Spending  14,636  17,637  17,751  18,128  18,470 

Rates Retention Scheme (RRS) funding (3,400) (3,400) (3,400) (3,400) (3,400)

HB Admin Grant / LCTS Grant (315) (409) (315) (315) (315)

Lower Tier Support Grant 21/22  - (451)  -  -  - 

Covid 19 Support Grant 21/22  - (536)  -  -  - 

Council Tax Requirement @  2.9% in 21/22 (10,519) (10,915) (11,380) (11,856) (12,343)

Dividend income LAPF (240) (240) (240) (240) (240)

Collection Fund:

- Council Tax deficit / (surplus) (162) (167)  -  -  - 

 -Rates Retention Scheme deficit / (surplus)  581  -  -  -  - 

Contribution from Rate Retention Scheme Equalisation Reserve (581)  -  -  -  - 

Use of General Reserve to balance budget  - (1,519) (2,416) (2,317) (2,172)

 0  0  0  0  0 

 0 (0) (0) (0)

Financing Revenue Spending
Year 0 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Council Taxbase  61,711.6  62,223.8  63,095  63,978  64,874 

Change in Taxbase 1.65% 0.83% 1.40% 1.40% 1.40%

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Revenue Budget 14,636 17,637 17,751 18,128 18,470

% change in Formula Grant /External Funding -100.0%

Rates Retention Scheme (RRS) funding (3,400) (3,400) (3,400) (3,400) (3,400)

HB Admin Grant / LCTS Grant (315) (409) (315) (315) (315)

Lower Tier Support Grant 21/22  - (451)  -  -  - 

Covid 19 Support Grant 21/22  - (536)  -  -  - 

Council Tax Requirement (10,519) (10,915) (11,380) (11,856) (12,343)

Dividend income LAPF (240) (240) (240) (240) (240)

Collection Fund:

- Council Tax deficit / (surplus) (162) (167)  -  -  - 

 -Rates Retention Scheme deficit / (surplus)  581  -  -  -  - 

Contribution from Rate Retention Scheme Equalisation Reserve (581)  -  -  -  - 

Use of General Reserve to balance budget  - (1,519) (2,416) (2,317) (2,172)

Total Financing (14,636) (17,637) (17,751) (18,128) (18,470)

Balance [(deficit); /surplus] 0 (0) (0) (0) (0)

(14,636) (17,637) (17,751) (18,128) (18,470)

Council Tax at Band D 170.46£     175.41£        180.36£       185.31£       190.26£       

Change from previous year 3.00% 2.90% 2.80% 2.75% 2.65%

Medium Term Financial Plan 
 Cabinet 8th February 2021

Cumulative Balance deficit; / (surplus)

Difference year on year

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 9



 

14. It is to be expected that Members will be seeking some reassurance regarding the 
financial commitment to the provision of our leisure service, primarily provided 
through our three leisure centres.  Presently these are once again closed as part of 
the national lockdown.  Discussions continue with our leisure operator over the 
finances of this lockdown and the effects of their reopening.  Given the 
circumstances, it is too early to offer firm costs of these changes, but a report will be 
made as part of the Corporate Plan for Council on 3rd March, if this becomes 
available.  In the meantime, no extra costs have been included within any papers 
presented for Scrutiny, or this Cabinet meeting, with some financial provision having 
been made with the Budget Management report elsewhere on this agenda. 

Consideration of the Corporate Plan and Budget 2021/22 by the Scrutiny Committee 
for Leader, Finance and Performance 

15. The Scrutiny Committee were asked to consider five aspects of the Corporate Plan 
and Budget; 

 The financial outlook facing the Council given the extent of the Covid-19 pandemic;  
 The proposed increase in Council Tax;  

 The strategy to use General Reserve to balance the budget over the short term;  

 The proposed Capital Programme; and  

 The service commentaries and supporting summary budget tables for each business 
unit.  

 
16. The draft minutes at Appendix 1, demonstrate the full and helpful discussion at the 

Scrutiny Committee with Members asking a wide range of detailed questions.  These 
did not result in any changes to the proposals but were very helpful to officers and 
Portfolio Holders.   

Capital Programme 

17. The Capital Programme was supported as presented.  In common with previous years 
we are anticipating bringing forward new capital schemes as we proceed through the 
year and the schemes get worked up into projects that are capable of ready delivery. 

Financial Implications 

18. There are no financial implications other than those identified in this report. 

Risk Management Implications 

19. In the preparation of the draft corporate plan and budget, risks will have been 
assessed and those that can be mitigated will have a plan attached.  It is not therefore 
considered that these proposals bring forward any significant risk.  

Equality and Customer Service Implications  

20. There are no such implications within this report. 

Other Material Implications 

21. There are no other material implications other than those already set out in this report. 

Background Papers 

None 

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 10



 

 

 APPENDIX 1 
Extract of Draft Minutes of  
Scrutiny Committee for Leader, Finance and Performance on 13th January 2021 
 
 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Scrutiny Committee for Leader, Finance 
and Performance on 13 January 2021  

from 5:00 p.m. to 6:29 p.m. 
 
Present:   

Alison Bennett Jim Knight 

Heidi Brunsdon Andrew Lea 

Roger Cartwright Chris Phillips 

Phillip Coote Mike Pulfer 

Rachel Cromie Lin Stockwell 

Anne Eves Colin Trumble 

Simon Hicks Rex Whittaker 
 Rodney Jackson 

 
 

 
                                     

 
* Absent 
 
Also present : Cllrs Hatton, Henwood, Webster, De Mierre, MacNaughton and Gibson. 
 
Also present (as Cabinet Member): Cllr Ash-Edwards and Cllr Llewellyn-Burke. 
 
1. ROLL CALL AND VIRTUAL MEETING EXPLANATION 
 
 The Chairman carried out a roll call to establish attendance at the meeting. The Solicitor to 

the Council provided information on the format of the virtual meeting. 
 
2. TO NOTE SUBSTITUTES IN ACCORDANCE WITH COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 4 - 

SUBSTITUTES AT MEETINGS OF COMMITTEES ETC.  
 

None. 
 
3.  TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE. 
 

None. 
  
4. TO RECEIVE DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS FROM MEMBERS IN RESPECT 

OF ANY MATTER ON THE AGENDA. 
 
In relation to any discussion concerning West Sussex County Council, Councillor Andrew 
Lea declared that he is a West Sussex County Councillor. 

 
5. TO CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD ON 11 NOVEMBER 2020. 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 11 November 2020 were agreed as a 

 correct record and electronically signed by the Chairman. 
 
6. TO CONSIDER ANY ITEMS THAT THE CHAIRMAN AGREES TO TAKE AS 

URGENT BUSINESS. 

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 11



 

 

  
 The Chairman acknowledged that he had received a question related to Clair Hall, however 

it would not be considered at this meeting. The information requested was not available at 
short notice, and Clair Hall falls under the business of the Scrutiny Committee for Community 
and Customer Services. 

 
7. DRAFT CORPORATE PLAN AND BUDGET 2021-22 

 
The Chairman thanked Members for submitting detailed questions in advance, and confirmed 
that responses have been provided. He reminded Members that in consideration of the 
Corporate Plan and Budget, the Council’s key priorities should be the main focus.  
 
The Leader provided an introduction, noting that the Council was in the unusual position of 
having recently agreed a revised Corporate Plan in September, due to the impact of the 
pandemic. He noted that the new draft Corporate Plan is a continuation of the priorities and 
workstreams recently agreed and is based on using the Council’s reserves to underpin the 
provision of services. He noted that this was not a sustainable position and in the medium 
term there is a need to bring the budget back into balance and rebuild the reserves.  One 
step is to increase Council Tax, not just to put the Council’s funding into a secure position, 
but to safeguard the services that can be delivered to residents and businesses. 
 
Kathryn Hall, Chief Executive reiterated the financial pressures faced by the Council as a 
result of the pandemic. She noted that the report being considered by the Committee has 
been updated to include the provisional settlement, but that the situation nationally changes 
quickly, and the report does not take into consideration the effects of the recent restrictions 
announced in January.  
 
Members discussed the need for the Council to be actively commercial, noting that the 
Minister recently commented on the need for Local Authorities to change their methods of 
investment. It was noted that this Council is not highly leveraged, and investments have often 
been in areas where there is a synergy with the Council’s existing interests. It was 
acknowledged that there is a need to generate a diverse source of revenue but to also 
balance the risks and benefits of this. A number of Members supported this approach. 
 
Discussion was held on whether the Corporate Plan and Budget was resilient in the face of 
unforeseeable changes. It was noted that the Council entered the pandemic in a strong 
financial position which is key to being agile in responding to the needs of residents and the 
pressures put on by Government. The Leader noted that the financial income support scheme 
that Government put in place for Local Authorities also responds in an agile fashion and 
covers 75% of some areas of lost revenue. As it is backdated to the first quarter of the 
financial year, this will assist.  
 
Members discussed the position of the reserves, noting that the budget was drawn up prior 
to the recent further closure of the Leisure Centres, which is an ongoing pressure on the 
Council’s finances. Peter Stuart, Head of Corporate Resources noted that the budget 
proposal is for 4 years, however it is very hard in the current climate to project that far ahead, 
and figures will change. Although allowance has not been made for further costs related to 
centre closures, allowance has been made for a reduction in income. Similarly, capital 
programme costs will be a draw on reserves but have only been projected for one year as 
any further ahead is unknown. He did however note that funds and subsidies will continue to 
come in. Members reiterated the importance of being actively commercial, and that council 
tax is major part of income both for the continuation of services and to boost the reserves. 
 
Discussion was held around the implementation of the job evaluation scheme which should 
hopefully fall into 2021/22, and financial provision has been made for this. A Member raised 
the issue of the climate emergency and the omission of focus on this in the Corporate Plan, 
particular around how the Council will reduce carbon emissions. A Member also queried the 

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 12



 

 

insurance services that the Council use, and it was confirmed that these are value for money, 
and more beneficial than employing in-house provision. 
 
A Member queried the savings from the efficiency programme and whether there were any 
cost savings in the new ways that staff are working.  The Chief Executive noted that identified 
efficiencies are around using technology to assist the public, and therefore aren’t cashable 
savings. The Council has agreed efficiency and service redesign work, which will begin in 
2021/22 with the aim to achieve cashable savings of around £250k from that workstream. 
 
The impact of the end of furlough and economic downturn was discussed and it was noted 
that the Council had responded well with grants to support businesses during difficult times. 
A Member queried if the Corporate Plan afforded the flexibility to research the economic 
downturn affecting small businesses. The Leader acknowledged that the Council continues 
to run Government and discretionary grant schemes for businesses, as well as issuing Covid 
Recovery funds, and in the longer term has projects such as the full fibre installation which is 
important in assisting the District’s economy to recover. 
 
Members discussed the Service Plans and Summary Budget Plans, with the Head of Service 
for each area providing a summary introduction.  
 
Judy Holmes, Assistant Chief Executive gave credit to the Business Units who have 
responded and continue to perform well in response to the demands placed by the pandemic. 
She highlighted that contractors have responded well with affordable housing coming on 
stream, and the majority of rough sleepers have been found accommodation. The impact of 
Leisure Centre closures was acknowledged particularly in terms of a difficulty in predicting 
income going forward.  
 
The Head of Corporate Resources commended the Revenues and Benefits department as 
the service has been exemplary in providing grants. He also noted key areas of 
modernisation that are planned both within the Council and the District, as well as the ongoing 
management of Council owned assets. 
 
Members acknowledged the positive work around site allocations and the Burgess Hill 
Growth Programme and welcomed the developments with the Place and Connectivity 
programme. It was acknowledged that parking income is significantly reduced this year, but 
projected to be better next year. Members put forward suggestions for other possible income 
streams such as charging double council tax for empty properties. Discussion was also held 
on the need to promote recycling, and to consider the services that the Leisure Centres can 
offer to meet changing need. The sustainable economic development strategy was raised, 
and an update will be provided at the next meeting. 
 
Rafal Hejne, Interim Head of Digital and Customer Services noted that business units had 
mobilised effectively to new working methods and work will continue to build on investment 
in technology and people, to maximise how the Council can deliver its services.  He clarified 
that the people strategy and workforce plan was centred around succession planning and 
developing and supporting the staff. A Member commended the Customer Services and 
Communications service area for its effective handling of a volume of enquiries. A Member 
raised the need to continue with capturing customer feedback in person (by phone) rather 
than relying on online forms. 
 
Tom Clark, Head of Regulatory Services noted the impact of the pandemic on the increased 
workload for the Environmental Health, Land Charges and Building Control teams, and the 
forthcoming focus of Democratic Services in implementing a Governance review and 
facilitating elections in a Covid-secure manner. It was noted that the elections are paid for 
externally and so the budgeted amount is appropriate.  
 
Members discussed the Capital Programme, particularly around sustainability.  The Head of 

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 13



 

 

Corporate Resources confirmed that the Council strikes a balance between environmental 
efficiencies and value for money in terms of items such as heating and windows. 
 
The Chairman took Members to a vote on the recommendation contained in the report, which 
was agreed with 10 in favour, 1 against and 4 abstentions.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 RESOLVED 
 

 The Committee considered the proposals for 2021/22 set out in the report and agreed any 
comments or recommendations that it wishes to make to Cabinet on:  
 
(a) The financial outlook facing the Council given the extent of the Covid-19 pandemic;  
  
(b) The proposed increase in Council Tax;  
  
(c) The strategy to use General Reserve to balance the budget over the short term;  
  
(d) The proposed Capital Programme; and  
  
(e) The service commentaries and supporting summary budget tables for each business unit. 
 

 
8. SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR LEADER, FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE 
 WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21 
 

Tom Clark, Head of Regulatory Services introduced the report, noting the 2 items to be 
discussed at the meeting in March. 
 
The Chairman took Members to the recommendation contained in the report which was 
agreed unanimously. 

 
 RESOLVED 

 
The Committee agreed the indicative Work Programme as set out at paragraph 5 of the 
report. 

Councillor Yes No  Abstain 

Bennett, A   y 

Brunsdon, H y   

Cartwright, R   y 

Coote, P y   

Cromie, R  y   

Eves, A   y  

Hicks, S    y 

Jackson, R   y 

Knight, J 
(Chairman) 

y   

Lea, Andrew  y   

Phillips, C y   

Pulfer, M (Vice 
Chairman) 

y   

Stockwell, L  y   

Trumble, C  y   

Whittaker, R y   

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 14



 

 

 
9. QUESTIONS PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 10, DUE NOTICE OF 

WHICH HAS BEEN GIVEN. 
 
 None. 
 

The meeting closed at 6.29pm. 
 

Chairman. 
 

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 15



This page is intentionally left blank



BUDGET MANAGEMENT 2020/21 – PROGRESS REPORT APRIL TO DECEMBER 2020 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
Purpose of Report 

1. This report reviews the progress on the Revenue Budget, Capital Programme and
Revenue Projects and Treasury Management for 2020/21.

Summary 

2. The forecast revenue outturn position for 2020/21 at the end of December is showing a
projected net overspend of £1,925,000 against the original budget, after the use of Covid-
19 Emergency Funding received totalling £1,808,000 (refer paragraph 28 of this report)
and after taking account of further Government funding due to be received in the
remainder of the year, which is summarised in paragraph 3 below.

3. As previously reported, the level of overspend is unprecedented for Mid Sussex, but is not
uncommon for shire districts this year as a direct result of the Covid pandemic adversely
affecting all sources of income.  However, the Income Compensation Scheme for lost
sales, fees and charges will help fund some of these losses and to date we have received
a total of just under £842,000.  Based on our latest forecast we estimate to receive a
further £1,108,000 under this scheme in 2020/21.  This has been included as part of the
projected net overspend position highlighted in paragraph 2 above.

4. In order to transparently provide finance to support the leisure centres through the
pandemic, the Cabinet is recommended to create a specific reserve to cover the costs of
the repeated closing and reopening of the facilities.  This will be financed by a £500k
transfer from General Reserve.

5. Finally, the last Budget Management highlighted the potential change to projected
financial forecasts at that time, as a result of the second lockdown that commenced on 5
November.  Since then, further Government announcements lead to the district being
placed in Tier 4 from Boxing Day and then in a national lockdown from 5 January 2021.
This will almost certainly change the projected forecasts within this report, but further
income losses will be covered by the Income Compensation scheme.

Recommendations 

6. To recommend to Council for approval:

(i) that £500,000 be transferred to a Leisure Covid Support Reserve from
General Reserve as detailed in paragraph 19;

(ii) that £38,170 grant income relating to Rough Sleepers Initiative be
transferred to Specific Reserve as detailed in paragraph 32;

REPORT OF: Head of Corporate Resources 
Contact Officer: Cathy Craigen, Chief Accountant 

Email: Cathy.craigen@midsussex.gov.uk Tel: 01444 477384 
Wards Affected: All 
Key Decision: No 
Report to: Cabinet 

8th February 2021 

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 17

Agenda Item 7

mailto:Cathy.craigen@midsussex.gov.uk


 
 

(iii) that £76,500 grant income relating to New Burdens funding to cover the 
cost of administering the new Business grants in respect of Covid be 
transferred to Specific Reserve as detailed in paragraph 33; 

(iv) that £48,631 grant income relating to Local Authority Compliance and 
Enforcement grant be transferred to Specific Reserve as detailed in 
paragraph 34; 

(v) that £9,663 grant income relating to New Burdens funding for Housing 
Benefit Accuracy Award Initiative and Severe Disability Premium Gateway 
Initiative be transferred to Specific Reserve as detailed in paragraph 35; 

(vi) that £75,000 grant income relating to support in respect of Covid-19 
preventative interventions delivered by Environmental Health teams be 
transferred to Specific Reserve as detailed in paragraph 36; 

(vii) that £61,418 grant income in respect of Journey to Work funding, to fund 
work being undertaken by the Employment Projects Co-ordinator be 
transferred to the Revenues and Benefits New Burdens Specific Reserve as 
detailed in paragraph 37; 

(viii) that £26,026 grant income to Implement the Test and Trace Support 
Payment scheme be transferred to the Revenues and Benefits New 
Burdens Specific Reserve as detailed in paragraph 38; 

(ix) the variations to the Capital Programme contained in paragraph 48 in 
accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure rule B3; 

(x) that prior year debtors in respect of Horsham District Council’s 
Contribution to the Census Partnership be written off as detailed in 
Appendix A of this report. 

To note: 
(xi) the remainder of the report. 

 
REVENUE SPENDING 
Position to the end of December 2020 

7. This is the fourth budget management report for the current financial year.  This is 
intended to inform Members how key income and expenditure targets are performing after 
the first three quarters of 2020/21 and to give an indication of the likely position at the end 
of the year. 

Expenditure and Income to date 

8. Table 1 details ’actuals’ to date for the key income categories and salaries expenditure, 
compared to their profiled budgets.  It gives a snapshot position on performance to the 
end of December only.  This table also details the projected year-end position for these 
key income categories, but this only forms part of the consideration for the year-end 
predictions for the Council’s overall revenue budget. 

  

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 18



 
 

 

Table 1: Key income/expenditure to the end of December 2020 

 INCOME    2020/21   Profiled   2020/21 
Pressure/ 
(Saving)  

Pressure/ 
(Saving) Projected 

    Actual to   2020/21   Original To end  To end Year-end 
    December   Budget   Budget December  September Variance 
    £’000   £’000   £’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 

  
     

 
  

 
   0 

Car Park Charges     (814)   (1,624)   (2,151) 810  608 968 
Development 
Management Fees  

  
(920) 

  
(1,121) 

  
 (1,494) 201 

 
168 318 

Building Control Fees    (308)   (426)   (549) 118  97 141 
Land Charges    (168)   (116)   (153) (52)  (10) (40) 
Licensing Act Fees    (126)   (134)   (145) 8  (19) 0 
Hackney Carriage Fees    (83)   (104)   (139) 21  13 0 
Outdoor Facilities Income    (150)    (238)   (279) 88  49 99 
Garden Waste    (1,112)   (1,098)   (1,381) 14  65 15 
Leisure Contract Income    120   (1,083)   (1,444) 1,203  842 1,564 
Industrial Estates Rents    (1,015)   (1,062)   (1,344) 47  64 138 
Town Centre Rents    (2,217)   (2,463)   (2,867) 246  189 284 
Depot Rent    (63)   (60)   (80) (3)  2 0 
General/Misc Property     (274)   (220)   (291) (54)  (39) (44) 
               
               

Total Income    (7,130)   (9,749)   (12,317) 2,619  2,029 3,443 
               

EXPENDITURE               
Staffing costs    9,684   9,611   12,815 73  (90) (455) 

               

 

9. Car parking income is below budget by £810,000 by the third quarter of the financial year.  
This is detailed in Table 2 below.  This is made up of lower than budgeted Season Ticket 
income of £121,000 and Pay and Display income of £689,000.  The nine-week 
suspension of Car Park charges during the Covid19 lockdown resulted in a total loss of 
Season Ticket income in that period of £28,000. Although Car Park charges 
recommenced from 8 June 2020, further losses are anticipated for the remainder of the 
year, as currently only 30% of season ticket holders have renewed. This is difficult to 
predict.  We previously reported a forecast loss of £87,000 on season ticket income and 
this is now expected to increase by £48,000, which represents a 70% loss on budget for 
the remainder of the year. This is shown in Appendix A of this report. 

10. With respect to Pay and Display income, there was also a total loss of income for the nine 
week period of the first lockdown. The period from June to December has recorded a 
further 34% loss. A further 30% loss on budget is now forecast for the remainder of the 
year and potentially more long term.  The total projected shortfall for Pay and Display 
income has been amended to reflect actual income to the end of December.  The revised 
forecast for the remainder of the year will be a further loss of £83,000 compared to the 
previous forecast, which is now revised to £833,000. This is shown in Appendix A of this 
report. These forecasts will be kept under review for the remainder of the year. 

  

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 19



Table 2: Car Parking Income variance
  Actual 

April to 
December 

Outturn 
2019/20 

Forecast 
2020/21 

(Over)/ under 
target 

(Over)/ under 
target 

(Over)/ under 
target 

£’000 £’000 £’000

Pay & Display tickets 689 (58) 833
Season Tickets 121 13 135
 Total additional income 810 (45) 968

11. At the end of December, there was a shortfall in planning application fee income of
£201,000. Income to the end of December has recorded a total loss of 22% against
budget for the year to date. The uncertainty in respect of the Covid impact on Planning fee
income remains, and the forecast shortfall for the remainder of the year is still assumed to
be 20% short of budget. The previously forecast shortfall of £318,000 for the year remains
unchanged.

12. At the end of December, Building Control Income is under target by £118,000. There was
a shortfall of £103,000 at outturn 2019/20 compared to 2020/21 budget. This shortfall in
income pre-Covid, is not expected to recover and was forecast as an ongoing 2019/20
pressure previously. After allowing for this forecast shortfall, it is expected that further
losses of income in respect of Covid will be limited to the shortfall to date with recovery to
pre-covid income levels for the remainder of the year. The previously forecast shortfall of
£141,000 remains unchanged.

13. At the end of December Land Charges income is above budget by £52,000. The number
of searches has continued to be high since the last report, probably due to the Stamp
Duty reduction. However, this is only temporary and will not continue.  An additional
£25,000 of income is reported in Appendix A of this report and a full year projection of
£40,000 is anticipated at this stage.

14. Licencing income is £8,000 under target for April to December.  This is mainly due to the
profiling of income, which can fluctuate. Therefore, the forecast remains unchanged.

15. Hackney Carriage Fees are below target by £21,000 for the first nine months of this
financial year.  This is mainly due to the profiling of income, which can fluctuate.

16. Outdoor facilities income is £88,000 below budget after the first nine months of the year.
This is partly due to income profiles, which can vary from the income due for specific
periods. The service issued refunds in the early part of the year in respect of poor weather
cancellations for 2019/20, and in the period to the end of May due to Covid-19 restrictions
and these amounted to £17,000.  The forecast previously reflected an expectation of
closure of facilities which generate sporting income for a large part of the year and the
reopening of Playgroups from September onwards. No forecast loss in Ground rent
income has been projected. No significant change to this projection is forecast at this
stage.

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 20



 
 

17. Based on the current budget profile, Garden Waste income is £14,000 below target at the 
end of December. The forecast was previously amended to reflect £113,000 shortfall for 
the year, which is due to the four-week suspension of Garden Waste collections at the 
start of the Government lockdown due to Covid-19. The month suspension is being 
addressed through an extension of customer’s existing annual contracts by one month. 
However, there has been further growth in subscribers to 21,000 for the current year 
generating a further £98,000 income, which is included in Appendix A of this report. 

18. The Government instructed leisure facilities to close on 20 March 2020.  This required the 
Council, in accordance with the contract, to negotiate with the contractors a sum to 
support the closures and re-openings of the Leisure centres.  The forecast previously 
allowed for a credit of the entire month of March 2020 and no Management Fee income 
for this year due to the ongoing government restrictions. The centres are not expected to 
reopen at normal capacity for the remainder of the year.  

19. To assist with this unexpected expenditure, it is proposed to create a Specific Reserve 
from which to finance the costs of closure and reopening.  A sum of £500k would be 
transferred from General Reserve; the transaction would therefore be neutral overall but 
would lend transparency to the support and be reported in the usual way. 

20. The actual to December for the four income areas outlined in paras 21 to 24 relates to 
income where an invoice has been raised rather than actual income received.  The impact 
of Covid-19, and any subsequent shortfall in income, has been included in the projection 
for the year. 

21. Industrial Estates rent is £47,000 below the target at the end of December.  A forecast 
pressure of £88,000 was reported in May and closures due to Covid have now resulted in 
a further pressure of £70,000.  This has been partly offset by additional rental income of 
£20,000.  The full year projection has been amended to £138,000.  This is shown in 
Appendix A of this report. 

22. Town Centre rent is £246,000 below the target at the end of December.  A forecast 
pressure of £200,000 relating to the supplementary rent for the Market Place Car Park 
was reported in May.  A further pressure of £84,000 was identified in July relating to rental 
income at The Orchards Shopping Centre as a result of Covid-19.  There is no further 
adjustment to the projection. 

23. Depot rent is £3,000 above the target at the end of December.  No change to the full year 
projection is anticipated at this stage. 

24. General/miscellaneous property income is £54,000 above the target at the end of 
December.  The forecast has previously been amended due to the receipt of unbudgeted 
rent for The Redwood Centre.  Additional income of £24,000 has been received for a 
habitat works licence granted to a developer.  The December position is that additional 
income of £5,000 has been received for administration fees.  The full year projection has 
been amended to £44,000. This is shown in Appendix A of this report.   

25. The salaries expenditure to the end of December is showing a pressure of £73,000 
against the profiled budget. This is mainly due to the cost of staff posts that are due to be 
funded from Reserves or external grant at year end. Therefore, the forecast year-end 
variance currently stands at a saving of £455,000 as detailed in Appendix A of this and 
previous reports, due to staff vacancies for the year.  This position will continue to be 
monitored closely as we progress through the year. 

26. In summary, based on current information available and as outlined in Appendix A and 
Table 4 below, the current forecast year-end position (at the end of December 2020), is an 
overspend of £1,925,000.  

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 21



Covid-19 related pressures to the end of December 2020 

27. The overall pressures outlined in Appendix A of this report contain both unbudgeted
expenditure and downturn in income as a result of the on-going impact of Covid-19. which
are also captured in a memorandum account in Table 3 below for information only.

28. As previously reported, these have been partly funded from the Emergency Covid-19-non-
ringfenced grant monies received on 14 May 2020, 17 July 2020 and 11 November from
MHCLG for £1,499,659, £170,965 and £100,000 respectively.  It is also proposed to use
the Covid-19 Emergency Fund Specific Reserve totalling £37,729 created at Outturn
2019/20 from grant received by MHCLG. The total Emergency Covid-19 funding received
by Mid Sussex to date stands at £1,808,353.

Table 3 Covid-19 Related Pressures 2020/21 
Projected 

Pressure Year-end 
To end of Variance 
December 

Expenditure / Income £’000 £’000 

Digital & Technology – IT equipment and temporary member of 
staff for the IT Helpdesk 54 54 
Corporate Facilities - additional cleaning of offices and securing 
of outdoor facilities 14 30 
Customer Services - publicity 3 3 
Refuse Collection (cost of social distancing additional trucks) 29 29 
Garden Waste change to service notification 20 20 
Postponement of 1-2-3- trial notification 2 2 
Leisure Centres – costs of closure 1,012 1,063 
Leisure Centres -costs of reopening 709 1,337 
Leisure Closure Consultancy 12 15 
Playground Reopening -Cleaning and signage 30 65 
Car Parks signage 10 10 
Garden waste income 113 113 
Leisure Management Fee income 1203 1,564 
Planning Fee income 201 318 
Building Control income   38 38 
Car Parking income 810 968 
Parking Financial Transactions (15) (15)
Outdoor Facilities income 88 99 
Town Centre Rents income 84 84 
Court Costs Income 103 103 
Controlled Parking Enforcement Income 35 35 

Total 4,555 5,935 

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 22



Update on the Proposed Mitigation of Forecast Overspend 

29. To date we have also submitted two claims as part of the Income Compensation scheme.
The first claim covering the first four months of this year totalled just under £842,000 and
allowed for the 5% deductible rate for the full year. This grant income was received in
November 2020 and has been included in Appendix A of this report to offset the forecast
Revenue overspend.  A second claim covering the period August to November was
submitted in December 2020 totalling just under £535,000.  Based on the latest forecast
submitted in the Government Return as at the end of November 2020, we therefore
estimate to receive a further £573,000 (to the nearest £’000) in Central Government
funding by the end of 2020/21, bringing the total forecast grant from the Local
Government income compensation scheme to £1,950,000.

30. Table 4 below summarises the Council’s position after allowing for Government support
funding, showing a remaining forecast net revenue overspend of £1,925,000 to be
addressed by year end.

Table 4 Summary of 2020/21 Net Revenue Overspend including Government Support 
Funding

£’000 Note 

Forecast Revenue Overspend @ end of December 2020 3,040 Appendix A 

Use of MHCLG Emergency Covid-19 Specific Reserve  (37) Para 28

Forecast Grant from Income Compensation Scheme  
(excludes £842k from first claim (April to July 2020) which 
is included above.  Includes £535k due for the second claim 
(April to November 2020) not yet received) 

(1,108) Para 29

 Total remaining Forecast Net Revenue Overspend to be 
addressed by year end 1,925 

Miscellaneous 

31. Since the last report, a number of government grants have been received which are set
out in the paragraphs below.  Whilst Members are requested to approve that these sums
are transferred to Specific Reserves, these will be reviewed at year-end should they be
needed to help mitigate the Revenue overspend for 2020/21.

32. In November the Council received £38,170 from MHCLG in respect of a Rough Sleepers
Initiative-Next Steps Accommodation grant.  The purpose of this grant is to provide
additional services for Rough Sleepers and Members are requested to approve that this
sum be earmarked in Specific Reserve for work undertaken by Housing Services.

33. In December, we received £76,500 New Burdens Local Authority Discretionary grants,
which is grant to cover the additional cost of administering new Business grants in respect
of Covid. Members are requested to approve that this sum be earmarked to the New
Burdens reserves to offset costs as they arise.

34. In November, the Council received £48,631 from MHCLG for Local Authority Compliance
and Enforcement grant, which is a grant to aid activities to raise Business and Public
awareness of Regulations and guidance in respect Covid 19 restrictions, encouraging
compliance and enforcement where necessary. Members are requested to approve this
sum be earmarked in Specific Reserve for this purpose.

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 23



 
 

35. In November, we received £8,825 and £838 from Department for Work and Pensions in 
respect of New Burdens for Housing Benefit Accuracy Award Initiative and Severe 
Disability Premium Gateway Initiative respectively. Members are requested to approve 
that these sums be earmarked to the New Burdens reserves to offset costs as they arise. 

36. In November, we received £75,000 grant from West Sussex County Council for Support in 
respect of Covid-19 preventative interventions delivered by Environmental Health teams. 
This is part of £150,000 grant in total for which a further £75,000 is expected in January. 
Members are requested to approve these sums be earmarked to Specific reserves for this 
purpose. 

37. In October, we received £61,418 grant from the Business Rates Pool in respect of 
Journey to Work funding, to fund work being undertaken by the Employment Projects Co-
ordinator. Members are requested to approve the transfer of this sum to Revenues and 
Benefits New Burdens specific reserves to meet this additional cost. 

38. £26,026 was received from MHCLG in October to Implement the Test and Trace Support 
Payment scheme. Members are requested to approve the transfer of this sum to 
Revenues and Benefits New Burdens specific reserves to offset costs as they arise. 

 

SPENDING ON CAPITAL PROGRAMME AND REVENUE PROJECTS 

Position to the end of December 2020 

39. The Capital Programme and Revenue Projects for 2020/21, now stands at £7,085,000.  
This includes slippage from the 2019/20 Capital Programme and current year capital 
project variations, as reported to Cabinet on 6 July 2020,14 September 2020 and 23 
November 2020.  The actual and commitments to the end of December 2020 total 
£6,239,527. 

Variances to the 2020/21 Capital Programme and Revenue Projects 

40. At this stage in the year the major variances are set out in table 5 below, the remainder 
being a number of smaller variations totalling less than £100,000. 

 
Table 5: Expenditure Variations on the 2020/21 Capital Programme and Revenue 

Projects 
     
 Variances  Variances  

 £’000  £’000 Notes 

 (overspend)  (underspends)  

Capital Projects     

Goddards Green Sewage Treatment works 496   1 

Burgess Hill Place and Connectivity Programme   (1,851) 2 

Temporary Accommodation – 5 properties 1,361   3 

Disabled Facility Grants   (421) 4 

Burgess Hill Library Demolition   (120) 5 

     

Revenue Projects     

Telephony System Replacement Revenue Project   (201) 6 

Drainage works (Revenue Project)   (109) 7 

     

     Total 1,857  (2,702)  
     
     

  

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 24



 
 

Notes:  
 
Planning Policy (Capital Projects)  
(1) Goddards green Sewage Treatment Works - Mid Sussex is the Accountable body for a Grant from the 

Coast to Capital Local Enterprise Partnership. Any works completed are funded from a grant claim in 
2020/21. 

(2) Burgess Hill Place and Connectivity Programme: All spend is funded by grant claimed through WSCC 
from the funding providers (Coast to Capital LEP).  

Housing (Capital Projects) 
(3) Housing purchases to be financed partly from balance of £127,000 held in Temporary Accommodation 

Specific Reserve.  The remaining costs of 5 properties to be met from £1.4m earmarked Capital Receipts 
monies approved in Report to Council 24th June 2020. 

Environmental Health (Capital Projects) 
(4) Demand-led Housing adaptations service for which a further £525,824 has been committed as at end of 

December. No forecast variation is anticipated at this stage.  

Corporate Estates & Facilities (Capital Projects 
(5) Burgess Hill Library Demolition – preliminary inspections and surveys have been carried out.  The main 

demolition works are due to commence at the end of January 2021. 

Digital and Technology (Revenue Projects) 
(6) Telephony System Replacement Revenue Project: First phase of implementation complete.   There will 

be slippage into 2021/22 for phase II (as per Appendix C – revised Corporate Plan).  The amount of 
budget to be slipped into 2021/22 will be reported at outturn. 

Corporate Estates & Facilities (Revenue Projects) 
(7) Drainage Works Revenue Project:  Spend to date relates to works at the Silver Birches trash screen.  A 

further project at King George V field has commenced but progress has been held up due to Covid.  
Some works are still planned to happen in 2020/21 but the exact value is dependent on progress made.  
The remaining budget will be slipped into 2021/22 and will be reported at outturn.  

 
Proposed Variations to the Capital Programme and Revenue Projects 

41. At Council on 24th June 2020, Members agreed to provide additional funding of £4.2m 
from Reserves to acquire temporary accommodation to assist in meeting the Council’s 
statutory responsibilities under the Homelessness legislation.  Initially, Members agreed to 
make £1.4m available to purchase 5 properties, with the additional funds reserved to be 
accessed as funds become available.  Five property purchases have now been acquired 
as detailed in Table 6 below, totalling £1.36m, funded partly from the balance held in the 
Temporary Accommodation Reserve (£127,000).  The balance has been funded from 
Capital Receipt monies earmarked for this purpose.  The current Capital Programme has 
been amended to reflect this. 

42. In the last Budget Management Report slippage of £70,000 for the Replacement 
Document Management project to 2021/22 was reported.  However, the original proposal 
was reviewed in the light of changed circumstances arising from Covid and it was decided 
to stay with the current provider for the next 2-3 years.  As a result of this change, 
essential upgrades to the existing system are required which will require a budget of 
£20,000 in 2020/21.  The current Capital Programme has been amended to reflect this. 

43. The Cabinet Member for Environment and Service Delivery used his delegated authority 
to authorise the release of £43,350 from S106 Play Space funds ring-fenced for upgrading 
the play equipment at Scaynes Hill Recreation Ground.  This was reported and detailed 
further in MIS47 on 25 November 2020.  The Project Justification is also shown in 
Appendix B at the end of this report.  The Current programme has been updated 
accordingly. 

  

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 25



 
 

44. The current Capital Programme includes £70,000 for Hurst Farm development costs.  
Ongoing due diligence has resulted in increased Consultant costs totalling £48,000.  This 
cost will be covered by the capital receipt expected in March 2021.  The Capital 
Programme has been updated accordingly and the cost will initially need to be met from 
General Reserve. 

45. The current Capital Programme includes £30,000 for St John’s Park playground 
improvements.  This project is work in progress and will be informed by the outcome of 
the Play Masterplan.  As a result, this project will now be completed in 2021/22.  The 
current programme has been updated accordingly. 

46. About the place’ is a new Public Art revenue project totalling £98,000 that has come 
forward for approval.  The works are due to commence in Spring 2021 and will take, 
approximately 18 months to complete, pandemic permitting.  This project will be funded 
mainly from S106s totalling £84,824, with the balance funded from third party 
contributions as detailed in the Justification form in Appendix B of this report.  The current 
programme has been updated accordingly. 

47. The Cabinet Member for Environment and Service Delivery used his delegated authority 
to authorise the release of £9,000 from S106 Formal Sports contributions to fund the 
installation of an electronic access gate at John Pears Recreation Ground tennis courts.  
This was reported and detailed further in MIS47 on 25 November 2020.  The Project 
Justification is also shown in Appendix B at the end of this report. The current programme 
has been updated accordingly. 

48. Proposed capital variations are summarised in table 6 below: 
 

Table 6: Capital Programme and Revenue Project Variations April to end December 2020  
   Apr to December  

   £’000 Ref 

Capital Projects     
Temporary Accommodation – 5 properties   1,361 Para 41 
Replacement Document Management    20 Para 42 
Scaynes Hill Recreation Ground New Playground Equipment   43 Para 43 
Hurst Farm    48 Para 44 
St. John’s Park playground improvements   (30) Para 45 
     
     Total Capital Projects   1,442  
     
Revenue Projects     
About the place Public Art project   98 Para 46 
Installation of electronic access gates- John Pears 
Recreation Ground Tennis courts, Ashurst Wood 

   
9 Para 47 

          Total Revenue Projects   107  
     
      

49. Taking into account the changes detailed above, the overall effect is an increase to the 
current Capital Programme and Revenue Projects for 2020/21 of £1,549,000, being an 
increase in Capital projects of £1,442,000 and an increase in Revenue Projects totalling 
£107,000.  There will also be a net increase in the 2021/22 programme by £10,000 due to 
rephasing back to 2020/21 and the slippage outlined above. Therefore, the overall revised 
programme total for 2020/21 now stands at £8,634,000.  

Capital receipts and contributions received to the end of December 2020 

50. S106s and grant contributions of £2,699,006 have been received in the period April to 
December 2020.  

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 26



 
 

 
S106 contributions committed/utilised to the end of December 2020  
51. The following S106 contributions have been utilised during this period: 

Table 7 S106 utilisation 2020/21  
   Apr to 

December 
 

   £’000 Note 

West Sussex County Council   87 1 

West Sussex County Council   12 2 

West Sussex County Council   9 3 

Albourne Parish Council   5 4 

West Sussex County Council   16 5 

West Sussex County Council   20 6 

East Grinstead Town Council 
East Grinstead Town Council 

  17 
1 

7 
8 

Ansty and Staplefield Parish Council   10 9 

Ansty Village Centre Trust   27 10 

Ashenground Community Centre   3 11 

Hurstpierpoint Allotment Association   1 12 

     

     Total   208  
     
     
 
Notes 
1 Utilisation of Sustainable Transport (TAD) contribution (P35/638b £11,977, P35/697 £17,515, P35/750 

£30,707 & PL13-001074 £26,871) S106 monies for a Cycle Route from Sayers Common to Downlands 
School, as agreed by the Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning on 5 May 2020 MIS 18 6 May 2020. 

2 Utilisation of Sustainable Transport (TAD) contributions P35/625a £1,289 & P35/781 £140) and Local 
Community Infrastructure contribution (P35/491 £10,499) S106 monies for the installation of a pedestrian 
crossing opposite Burgess Hill School for Girls, as agreed by the Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning 
on 18 May 2020 MIS 20 21 May 2020. 

3 Utilisation of Sustainable Transport (TAD) contribution (P35/489 £8,903) S106 monies for the upgrade of 
Footpath 29Cu (A272 Lewes Road, Haywards Heath), as agreed by the Cabinet Member for Housing and 
Planning on 11 June 2020 MIS 24 17 June 2020. 

4 Utilisation of Sustainable Transport (TAD) contribution (P35/572 £ 5,289) S106 monies for the purchase of 
portable Speed Indicator Device (SID) and installation of Village Gateways as part of Albourne’s Traffic 
Calming Project, as agreed by the Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning on 22 July 2020 MIS 29 22 July 
2020. 

5 Utilisation of Sustainable Transport (TAD) contribution (PL13-000869 £15,871) S106 monies for secure 
fencing at the front of Southway School, Burgess Hill, as agreed by the Cabinet Member for Planning and 
Economy on 29th July 2020 MIS 31 5 August 2020. 

6 Utilisation of Sustainable Transport (TAD) contribution (P35/737 £19,750.80) S106 monies for Real Time 
Passenger Information (RTPI) displays in Cuckfield, as agreed by the Cabinet Member for Planning and 
Economy on 11th August 2020 MIS 32b 12 August 2020. 

7 Utilisation of Community Building contributions (PL12-000378 £7,607.56, PL13-000980 £2,946.59, PL13-
001136 £4,462.85 & PL13-001986 £1,529) S106 monies for toilet modernisation at Meridian Hall, East 
Grinstead, as agreed by the Cabinet Member for Community MIS 33 21 August 2020. 

8 Utilisation of Local Community Infrastructure contribution (PL13-000677 £656.67) S106 monies to purchase 
and install a bike shelter and bike stands at East Court, as agreed by the Cabinet Member for Planning and 
Economy on 26 August 2020 MIS 34 26 August 2020. 

9 Utilisation of Local Community Infrastructure contribution (P35/723 £9,900) S106 monies to purchase three 
mobile Speed Indicator Devices (SIDs), as agreed by the Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning on 12 
October 2020 MIS 41 14 October 2020. 

10 Utilisation of Community Buildings contribution (PL12-001421 £9,131), Formal Sport contributions (PL13-
001068 £4,420, PL12-001307 £8,022 & PL13-00965 £3,500) and Local Community Infrastructure contribution 
(PL12-001307 £2,000) S106 monies towards the cost of fitting out the new community and sports pavilion, as 
agreed by the Cabinet Grants Panel on 19 October 2020 MIS 42 21 October 2020. 

11 Utilisation of Community Building contribution (PL12-001082 £2,642) S106 monies towards the cost of Covid-
19 Secure measures, as agreed by the Cabinet Grants Panel on 19 October 2020 MIS 42 21 October 2020. 

12 Utilisation of Local Community Infrastructure contributions (PL12-000578 £1,168 & P35/787 £207) S106 
monies towards the cost of water standpipes and tanks, as agreed by the Cabinet Grants Panel on 19 
October 2020 MIS 42 21 October 2020. 

 
  

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 27



 
 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT INTEREST 
 
52. Treasury Management interest for this financial year was projected in the Budget Report 

to be £354,475 at an average rate of 1.0%.  The Budget Report is prepared well before 
many of the cash flow items are known. 

53. The forecast for investment income is under target due to the continued reduction in the 
rates available in the market and the lower than budgeted level of capital receipts received 
in the year to date. Actual Treasury Management interest earnings for the first nine 
months of 2020/21 were £138,862 at an average rate of 0.44%. The average interest rate 
has dropped since the last Budget Management Report as fixed term investments made 
prior to March (and at a higher rate) have continued to mature during the year.  

54. It is also depressed because of the policy to keep higher than usual liquid cash deposits, 
which was judged necessary due to the impact of Covid-19 on our revenue income 
streams.  The average rate may improve if either market rates increase, or the Council 
decides to opt for some longer placement terms.  This position will continue to be 
monitored closely for the remainder of the year.  The estimated year-end projection for 
Treasury Management to be earned in the year is £167,349 being £187,126 under target. 

Local Authority Property Fund Dividends 

55. For CCLA we have received £177,254 against a budget of £240,000.  Based on the first 
three quarters dividend, this is likely to result in a shortfall of £2,746 by year-end, therefore 
any shortfall will need to be funded from General Reserve.  However, this will continue to 
be monitored and a further update will be reported in the 2020/21 Outturn Report. 

 
POLICY CONTEXT 
56. This report shows actual financial performance against the original budget, which was 

approved within the context of the Financial Strategy. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
57. The financial implications are detailed within the body of this report. 

RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
58. There are no risk management implications.  

EQUALITY AND CUSTOMER SERVICE IMPLICATIONS 
59. There are none. 

OTHER MATERIAL IMPLICATIONS 
60. There are no legal implications as a direct consequence of this report. 

Background Papers 
Revenue Budget 2020/21 

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 28



 
 

 APPENDIX A 
 

Forecast Budget Variations for 2020/21 at the end of December 2020 
 

 
Pressures 
in 2020/21 

 
Notes 

   
 £’000  
   
April to September pressures Cabinet 23 November 2020 6,586  

Parking Season Tickets (Covid-19) 48 1 

Pay and Display Income (Covid-19) 83 1 

Leisure Consultancy (Covid-19) 5 1 

Leisure Closure costs (Covid-19) 51 1 

Leisure re-opening costs (Covid-19) reversal of previous pressure (84) 1 

Planning Consultants 25 2 

Gatwick expansion specialist Advice 28 3 

Recycling Bin purchases 14 4 

Consultant – Interim Head of Service 110 5 

HR Consultants 55 6 

Clair Hall Legal advice 27 7 

Commercial property – rental income 70 8 

Corporate subscriptions 5 9 

Horsham Census Debt write off 115 10 

Garden Waste Contract costs 56 11 
   
   

 7,194  
   

   
   

Notes: 
(1) See Table 3 above. 
(2) Planning consultants costs in respect of Planning Appeals. 
(3) Specialist advice in relation to Gatwick for 2019/20.  
(4) Additional recycling bin requests due to additional recycling capacity required by households, 

spending a greater time at home due to Covid-19 restrictions. 
(5) Consultant to cover Head of Service role during his sickness absence. 
(6) Additional cost of HR Consultants. 
(7) Additional costs of legal advice in respect of a Judicial review in respect of the closure of Clair 

Hall. 
(8) See paragraph 21. 
(9) Increased cost of corporate subscriptions compared to budget.  
(10) Prior year debtors in respect of Horsham’s Contribution to the Census Partnership have now 

been written off.  This relates to disputed costs for the costs of redundancy incurred by Mid 
Sussex as employer.  Adur-Worthing Councils settled their invoice in full after clarification. 

(11) Additional collection costs payable to the Garden Waste contractor for growth in subscribers 
by 1,400 bins. 

 
 
  

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 29



 
 

 Appendix A 
 

Forecast Budget Variations for 2020/21 at the end of December 2020 
 

 
Savings 

in 2020/21 
 

Notes 

   
 £’000  
   
April to September savings Cabinet 23 November 2020 (2,722)  

Parking Financial Transactions (Covid-19) (15) 12 

Garden Waste income (98) 13 

Economic development Initiatives (86) 14 

Environmental Health Staffing (16) 15 

Refuse Contract Indexation (42) 16 

Digital & Technology – salaries (14) 17 

Local Land Charges income (25) 18 

COVID 19 Emergency funding S31 Grant (100) 19 
Sales, Fees and Charges Compensation scheme grant (April to 

July claim) (842) 
 

20 

Balance Unallocated (28) 21 

Customer Services - salaries (4) 22 

Customer Services - publicity (8) 23 

HR - salaries (26) 24 

XCD (HR core system) (19) 25 

Training (36) 26 

Industrial Estates rents (20) 27 

Corporate Estates – administration fees (5) 28 

Photocopiers (12) 29 

Procurement service (6) 30 
   
   

 (4,124)  
   

   

  

 

Notes: 
 

(12) See Table 3 above 
(13) See paragraph 17 of this report. 
(14) The underspend in the Economic Development budget is due to the impact of Covid 19 on 

delivery of the Economic Development Strategy work programme which meant that Projects 
such as the Open 4 Business event, Roundtable Forum meetings, the Marketing and 
Promotion Strategy work and work on a Business Improvement District for Haywards Heath 
could not progress as planned. Instead the focus of the Team was to prepare and deliver an 
Economic Recovery Plan, including delivery of government grant funded projects. 

(15) Staff saving for staff seconded to Covid compliance and enforcement work financed by 
external grant. 

(16) Indexation for the Refuse contract for 2020/21 was calculated at 1.93% compared to 2.88% 
budgeted. 

(17) Staff saving due to a vacant post. 
(18) See Paragraph 13. 
(19) Refer para 28 
(20) Refer para 29 
(21) The Balance Unallocated has no planned utilisation for the remainder of the year resulting in a 

saving of £28,000.  
(22) Staff saving in Customer Services as a result of reduced hours.  

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 30



 
 

 
(23) Saving on Customer Services publicity as the majority of costs have been funded from 

Government grants such as the Re-opening the High Street Safely Fund. 
(24) Saving on salaries in HR due to a member of staff being on maternity leave. 
(25) Saving on the XCD HR system as a result of no additional contractual work being required. 
(26) Saving on staff training as a result of the Covid restrictions. 
(27) See Paragraph 21. 
(28) See Paragraph 24. 
(29) Reduction in printing costs and a reduced level of printing due to less occupation in the office 

because of Covid. 
(30) Saving on cost of the Procurement service compared to budget. 

 

  

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 31



 
 

 APPENDIX B 
Capital Project Justification Form 

 
 

Scaynes Hill Recreation Ground 
New Playground Equipment   

Purpose of project:  

Lindfield Rural Parish Council (LRPC) have approached Mid Sussex District Council (MSDC)  
to use S106 money ring fenced for upgrading the play equipment at Scaynes Hill Recreation 
Ground. 

This new equipment will greatly improve the play value for the users and significantly 
upgrade the play area. It will provide Mid Sussex District Council (MSDC) with an opportunity 
to upgrade the facilities which will improve the standard and quality of play on offer. The 
facilities are well used by the community, and the improvements to this play area will help to 
continue and increase users’ enjoyment and interest for the foreseeable future and to 
encourage more people to use the facilities. 

The Parish Council have sought three quotations from reputable suppliers and the Corporate 
Estates & Facilities Team have worked with the Parish Council to agree the preferred option 
to ensure it meets the Council’s standards. 

MSDC will manage and order the equipment for this project following normal processes. 

Costs: 

Amount: £43,350 
 
Proposed funding- 
Section 106 - Play space 
PL12-001487 (DM/16/3119)  – Land at Barn Cottage, Lewes Road -  £43,350 
 
Total                                                                              £43,350 
  
Capitalised Salaries included in the project total :        N/A 
 
Other sources of funding :(i.e. big lottery etc.)              N/A 
 
Revenue implications 
 
Following expiry of the one-year warranty the equipment will be MSDC’s responsibility to 
maintain and inspect. Dependent on the level of repairs or maintenance required, this will 
present an additional revenue cost. The equipment is from a well-known supplier who the 
Council has previously used.. Any on-going maintenance costs will be met from existing 
maintenance budgets. 
 
Value for money assessment:  
 

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 32



 
 

Three quotes have been sought for play equipment that the Parish Council wanted. The 
successful bidder had the lowest quote for supply and installation. 
 
Business Unit/Service:  Commercial Service & Contracts 
Head of Service:           Judy Holmes 
Project Manager:          Stuart Brown 
Cabinet Members         Cllr. John Belsey 
Ward Members:            Cllr. Linda Stockwell and Cllr. Paul Brown 
 
This project contributes to achieving the Corporate Plan in the following ways: 
 

• Effective and responsive services 
 

• Enhancing and improving play value for local residents. 
• Providing facilities which are of quality, safe and fit for purpose. 

 
• Strong and resilient communities 

 
• Providing high quality facilities for the local community. 

 
Summary of discussions with Cabinet Members: 
 
The Cabinet Member is supportive of this scheme.. 
 
Risk Analysis 
 
The main risks of the project and the likelihood, severity and financial impact (rated low, 
medium, high) of each of these risks are:  
 
Risk Likelihood Severity Financial 

impact 
1.Incidents during construction low low low 
2. Incident following construction low low low 
3. Equipment fails post installation 
inspection 

low medium medium 

4. Delay to installation due to weather/ 
ground conditions 

low low low 

 
Mitigation actions 
 
Qualified, experienced contractors, Risk Assessments, Method Statements and frequent 
communication with the design team, appointed contractor and MSDC. 
 
 

 
  

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 33



 
 

 
Revenue Project Justification Form 

 
‘About the Place’ - Public Art Project 

Purpose of project:  
 
The Council will work in partnership with East Grinstead Town Council, Lindfield, Slaugham 
and Worth Parish Councils; the Ansty Village Centre Trust and West Sussex County Council 
to map a route that connects these areas through the Public Right of Way network.  The 
project will promote walking and cycling and encourage local participation to support healthy 
and sustainable communities.   
 
The project aims to: 
• stimulate local knowledge and pride of place through storytelling, performing and visual 

arts. 
• engage residents in creative activities to make artwork and contribute toward the trail.  
• engage, inspire and inform visitors about the history and character of each locality 
• encourage an enjoyment of the natural environment and participation in in walking and 

cycling.     
 
We will commission an artist to create and install a series of 12 unique waymarkers to create 
a 42 mile walking trail and two circular walks. Each waymarker will have a QR code to take 
smartphone users to a website displaying artwork (film, images, sound recordings) produced 
through community arts projects in each area.   
 
Artists will be engaged to work with local participants using a range of artforms (i.e. music, 
visual arts, drama, storytelling, poetry, dance, music) to respond to the different themes in 
each locality to produce content for an ‘About the Place’ website.   

 
The work will commence in Spring 2021 and take, subject to any government restrictions in 
relation to the Covid19 pandemic, approximately 18 months to complete.  
 
Costs: 
 
Community art projects (activity / theme):                                                                         £  
Lindfield (lantern display / environment)   6,488 
Ansty (dance / sports)  3,089 
Slaugham (poetry / flora and fauna)  770 
Worth (pictoral maps / sites of local interest)  17,020 
East Grinstead (murals and drama / Bluebell Railway)  19,705 
Waymarkers commission  36,000 
Website & Print  2,524 
Other (licenses, Planning, decommissioning, adverts)                    10,244 
Contingency                                                                                       2,341 
 
Maximum Amount :  £98,181 
The following s106 funds are locally available to support this project: 

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 34



 
 

 
Public Art 
Land at 27-29 Cantelupe Road (P35/632b, 08/00867/FUL) - £2,392 
Land at Shovelstrode Beacon (P35/652b, 08/04025/FUL) - £5,063 
Land at 1 Middle Row (P35/664, 08/02162/FUL) - £622 
Land at the Rentokil Site (P35/667, 07/03142/FUL) – £17,398 
Land on west side of Windmill Lane ( P35/705, 09/03020/FUL) - £2,530 
Land on the north side of Lyoth Lane  (P35/594, 08/02532/OUT) – £17,250 
Land at West Park Road (P35/650, SV/038/96) - £1,098 
Land at CUC House (P35/698a/b, 09/01926/OUT) - £3,818 
Land at the Franciscan Convent (P35/636b, 07/00568/FUL) - £8,200 
Land adj Burleigh Infant School (P35/654, 07/03303/C4REG) - £2,314 
Land South of Grange Rd (P35/728, 11/00649/FUL) – £20,712 
Land at Haven Farm (P35/717, 10/01278/FUL) - £3,427 
     
Total s106 funding - £84,824 
Balance required from capital reserves - £0 
Capitalised Salaries included in the project total : N/A 
Other sources of funding :(i.e. big lottery etc.) N/A 
Ansty Village Centre Trust - £7,357 
LCWIP Implementation - £6,000 
 
Revenue implications:  
 
There are no ongoing revenue costs.  The budget includes costs to keep the website live for a 
period of six years and a sum toward decommissioning of the waymarkers at this stage or at 
a later date.  They will be designed to be suitable for outdoor conditions, in an open access 
public space, and will not require any routine maintenance. 
 
Value for money assessment:  
 
An open commission will be advertised to invite submissions for consideration by a Steering 
Group consisting of District, Parish and County Council representatives.  The contract will be 
managed by the Council and this process will ensure good value for money is achieved.  The 
s106 funds to be allocated to this scheme were received specifically for the purpose of 
providing public artworks in these areas.   
 
Business Unit/Service:   Community Services, Performance & Partnerships 
Head of Service:   Peter Stuart 
Business Unit Leader: Emma Sheridan 
Project Manager:   Elaine Clarke 
Cabinet Member:  Cllr Norman Webster 
Ward Members:   
Lindfield - Cllr Ash-Edwards, Cllr Andrew Lea, Cllr Anthea Lea 
Haywards Heath Heath - Cllr Ellis, Cllr Laband 
Haywards Heath Lucastes – Cllr de Mierre, Cllr Knight 
Ardingly & Balcombe – Cll MacNaughton, Cllr Marsh 
Copthorne & Worth – Cllr Phillips 
Crawley Down & Turners Hill – Cllr Coote, Cllr Gibson, Cllr Webb 

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 35



 
 

East Grinstead Imberhorne – Cllr Brunson, Cllr Whittaker 
Ashurst Wood – Cllr Belsey 
 
This project contributes to achieving the Corporate Plan in the following ways: 
 
The Corporate Plan priority ‘Strong and Resilient Committees’ supports the development of 
community infrastructure as a result of housing growth and encourages initiatives to improve 
health and wellbeing, promote cycling  and invest in public open spaces.      
 
Summary of discussions with Cabinet Member: 
 
The Cabinet Member has been briefed and is supportive of this District wide scheme to 
promote the countryside, physical exercise and creative participation.  The six place-based 
projects will celebrate local identify and the walking trail will link these communities together.      
 
Risk Analysis: 
 
The main risks of the project and the likelihood, severity and financial impact (rated low, 
medium, high) of each of these risks are:  
 
Risk Likelihood Severity Financial 

impact 
1. Covid-19  low high low 
2. Incidents during fabrication and 
installation  

medium medium low 

3. Incident following installation low low low 
 
Mitigation actions: Socially distanced and digital approaches to public participation.  The 
appointed artist(s) will be required to hold public liability insurance and provide a risk 
assessment(s) prior to the delivery and installation of the works 
 
 

 
 

  

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 36



 
 

Revenue Project Justification Form 
 

John Pears Recreation Ground, Ashurst Wood: Installation of electronic 
access gates for tennis court access 

Purpose of project:  

John Pears Recreation Ground in Ashurst Wood is a very popular recreation ground used by 
members of the public, Ashurst Wood Junior Football Club and Ashurst Wood Community 
Tennis Club.   

Ashurst Wood Community Tennis Club uses the tennis courts on site and provides the 
opportunity for local residents and the neighbouring community to play tennis. They offer 
coaching opportunities for both adults and juniors, as well as holding club tournaments. 

Johns Pears is managed under a Rural Management Agreement (RMA) with Ashurst Wood 
Village Council (AWVC). They manage all the bookings and collection of income for the use 
of all the facilities on the site. For this they receive a payment equal to 20% of all the income 
received over the year. 

Officers have been working with the Lawn Tennis Association (LTA) over the past two years 
to identify ways to increase tennis court usage at all the Council’s park facilities as part of a 
wider project. Feedback from the Village Council, club members, members of the public and 
the LTA shows that availability and accessing the courts is not an easy process and that it is 
potentially a barrier to people booking the courts 

The ClubSpark booking system won the “Best Participation Technology” at the Sports 
Technology Awards last year and is used extensively by other Local Authorities and Private 
Clubs to manage their courts. This software allows members to create their own accounts 
(which our previous online system could not do) to speed up booking times, allows them to 
cancel bookings (which our previous system could not do) and also to download the app to 
their mobile phone for quick and easy bookings. This system went live on 1 October 2020 
across all the Council’s park tennis court sites and has been positively received by users. 

The next stage of this project is to link ClubSpark to a new electronic gate system, so that 
once a booking has been made via ClubSpark the hirer is sent a unique code that they use 
to enter the courts for their specific hire period. Currently the Council has coded access 
gates which have to be manually changed every 2-3 weeks by officers. This is very time 
consuming and does not stop people accessing the courts multiple times once they have the 
code. 

The Council has recently been successful in securing LTA funding to introduce electronic 
access gates at tennis courts at Victoria Park in Haywards Heath and St Johns Park in 
Burgess Hill, which will be introduced at John Pears following completion of the work and it 
is proposed to roll the technology out across all remaining sites as funding becomes 
available. 

The system has ongoing maintenance and data costs of £601 per year, which will be funded 
from increased income as a result of improved usage levels. 

Costs: 
 
Amount: £9,000.00 

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 37



 
 

 
 
 
Proposed funding- 
S106 Formal Sports                                                      £9,000.00 
 
Total                                                                              £9,000.00 
  
 
 
Capitalised Salaries included in the project total :        N/A 
 
Other sources of funding :(i.e. big lottery etc.)              N/A 
 
See below for S106 funding breakdown. 
 

• £7,540 from P35/667 – Land at Rentokil House, Garland Rd, EG 
• £1460 from P35/694 – Land rear of 240 – 258 Holtye Road 

 
Legal implications:- 
 

• The planning permission for land at Rentokil House, Garland Road secured financial 
contributions towards formal sports in the North Area. 

• The planning permission for land rear of 240-258 Holtye Road, East Grinstead 
secured financial contributions towards formal sports in the area served by the North 
area planning committee. 

• The project is considered to represent appropriate expenditure of the contributions 
from the above agreements. 

• The project is considered to provide a benefit to the local community. 
 
 
Revenue implications 
 
Improvement of the process of bookings and accessing the courts as well as the wider 
marketing planned with the LTA should increase participation levels and income for the 
Council. 
 
Value for money assessment:  
 
The proposals will increase revenue from the tennis courts and improve the customer journey. 
The income generated by the revised proposals will help to ensure a consistent long term 
income from the clubs and casual use. It will also provide efficiencies for the Council in officer 
time. 
 
Business Unit/Service:  Commercial Service & Contracts 
Head of Service:           Judy Holmes 
Project Manager:          Stuart Brown 

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 38



 
 

Cabinet Members         Cllr. John Belsey  
Ward Members:            Cllr. John Belsey 
 
This project contributes to achieving the Corporate Plan in the following ways: 
 

• Enhancing and improving play value for formal sports in MSDC. 
• Providing facilities which are of quality, and are safe and fit for purpose. 
• Providing facilities for the local community. 

 
 
Summary of discussions with Cabinet Members: 
 
The Cabinet member is supportive of this scheme. 
 
Risk Analysis 
 
The main risks of the project and the likelihood, severity and financial impact (rated low, 
medium, high) of each of these risks are:  
 
Risk Likelihood Severity Financial 

impact 
1.Incidents during construction low low low 
2. incident following construction low low low 

 
Mitigation actions 
 
Qualified, experienced contractors, Risk Assessments, Method Statements and frequent 
communication with the design team, appointed contractor and MSDC. 
 
 

 
 
 

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 39



This page is intentionally left blank



AGE UK PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENTS 
 
REPORT OF:  HEAD OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
Contact Officer:  Paul Turner; Community Services Manager  

Email paul.turner@midsussex.gov.uk  
Wards Affected:  All 
Key Decision:  No 
 
Purpose of the report 

1. The purpose of this report is to provide an update to Cabinet on the Partnership 
Agreements with key social sector partners and to seek approval to extend grant 
funding arrangements, with Age UK West Sussex, Brighton & Hove and Age UK East 
Grinstead, for a further financial year to run from April 2021 to the end of March 
2022. This will bring these agreements into line with the other agreement in place 
with Voluntary Sector partners and allow for a comprehensive refresh of these 
agreements to take place during the course of 2021-22. 

Summary 

2. On October 19th, 2020 the Cabinet Grants Panel endorsed a proposal to extend the 
annual partnership grants to Age UK West Sussex Brighton & Hove and Age UK 
East Grinstead. It was agreed the proposal would be presented to Cabinet in 
February 2021 for decision.  

3. Five Social Sector organisations are currently provided with core funding as part of 
the Partnership Agreement Programme. These organisations help the Council fulfil 
its corporate priorities by providing effective and responsive services which contribute 
to strong and resilient communities.   

4. Existing partnership agreements with Mid Sussex Voluntary Service, Citizens Advice 
and Action in Rural Sussex run until March 2022 with Age UK West Sussex, Brighton 
& Hove and Age UK East Grinstead partnership agreements expiring in March 2021.  

5. The paper provides information about the vital services Age UK West Sussex, 
Brighton & Hove and Age UK East Grinstead provide and the funding commitments 
and requests a one-year extension to bring them in line with the other partnership 
agreements which currently run to March 2022.  

Recommendations 

6. Members of the Cabinet are recommended to: 

(i) Extend Age UK East Grinstead an annual grant of £18,269 for one year, from Apr 
2021 - Mar 2022. 

(ii) Extend Age UK West Sussex, Brighton & Hove an annual grant of £54,807 for one 
year, from Apr 2021 - Mar 2022. 

 

Background 

7. The Council currently has Partnership Agreements in place with the following five 
Social Sector organisations:  

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 41

Agenda Item 8

mailto:paul.turner@midsussex.gov.uk


  

 Age UK East Grinstead (2019-21) - £17,823 pa.  

 Age UK West Sussex (2019-21) - £53,470 pa.  

 Mid Sussex Voluntary Action (2019-22) - £38,471 pa.   

 Action in Rural Sussex (2019-22) - £7,226 pa. 

 Citizens Advice (2019-22) - £119,404 pa. (joint funding agreement with           
            WSCC and other District Councils in West Sussex - option to extend 1 further  
            year 2022-23) 
 

8. The term Social Sector refers to volunteers, charities and social enterprises that are 
at the core of civil society. ‘Civil society refers to individuals and organisations when 
they act with the primary purpose of creating social value, independent of state 
control. By social value we mean enriched lives and a fairer society for all’ (Civil 
Society Strategy: Building a Future that Works for Everyone, Cabinet Office 2018). 
Mid Sussex has a vibrant Social Sector that provides a wide variety of services to the 
residents of the District. 

9. Mid Sussex District Council has a long history of collaborative community 
development and engagement with a strong local CVS as well as other local 
statutory and private sector partners. The impact and legacy of this work and the 
powerful relationships it has fostered, have been realised in recent months as this 
Council, its partners and its communities, mobilised to respond to the Covid19 
pandemic, attending to the needs of and supporting the vulnerable communities of 
our District.  

Age UK West Sussex, Brighton & Hove and Age UK East Grinstead 

10. Age UK East Grinstead and Age UK West Sussex are funded to provide services to 
tackle social isolation and support older people aged 50+ years, living independently 
and at risk of loneliness in the three main towns and surrounding villages. Age UK 
East Grinstead is based at Glen Vue, Age UK West Sussex, Brighton & Hove runs 
two activity centres in Mid Sussex: Lamb House, Haywards Heath and Cherry Tree, 
Burgess Hill.   

11. The Two Age UK brands are trusted, well-established charities with a strong delivery 
reputation in Mid Sussex and wider West Sussex. The two organisations provide a 
range of services which include, home from hospital, information and advice, home 
visiting, take home and settle, help at home, dementia support, catering, as well as 
many physical and social activities at the centres.  Ordinarily, the three centres are 
busy with daily activities engaging with clients on a face-to-face basis, but the 
coronavirus pandemic has made this type of interaction impossible. 

Response to Covid-19 Pandemic  

12. The pandemic, ensuing lockdowns and social distancing measures have resulted in 
an immediate stop business as usual for the three Age UK centres. This include a 
shutdown of facilities, temporary furlough of staff and significant loss of volunteers 
who were required to shield for their own safety. Despite these significant challenges 
and impacts to core business, all three centres ensured they were still here for older 
people in Mid Sussex offering: information and advice, signposting, telephone 
befriending, hot meals, doorstep deliveries, wellbeing checks, welfare and safety 
support and wellbeing advice. These vital services ensured some of our most 

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 42



vulnerable residents, many of which were on the NHS shielding list, where able to 
access support for food, medicines and physical and mental health issues.  

13. Both services also played a key role in the immediate community support response 
ensuring no one was left behind during one of the country's most challenging periods 
in recent history.  As a well trusted brand and partner, the Age UK services were able 
to work with other key voluntary sector partners to ensure essential community 
referral pathways were timely, efficient and available to those most in need in our 
local communities.  

14. In recognition of the ongoing challenging environment in which the local CSV sector 
are operating in, the Cabinet is recommended to agree short term extensions to 
these two essential community support organisations, so they may continue to 
support the most vulnerable in our communities during the COIVD19 pandemic. This 
funding assurance will also help these organisations to build and adapt for the future 
in uncertain times.  

Financial Implications 

15. The total required budget for 2021/22 for both Age UK bands is £73,076 which 
includes a 0.5% increase for inflation.  Separately this would be £54,807 for Age UK 
West Sussex, Brighton & Hove & £18,269 for Age UK East Grinstead. This is 
covered by the proposed budget for 2021-22 which will considered by Council in 
February.  

16. WSCC is the primary funder of these services and currently makes an annual 
contribution of £33,680 to Age UK East Grinstead and £133,351 to Age UK West 
Sussex, Brighton & Hove. The WSCC contracts with both organisations run until 30th 
June 2021. The WSCC are currently conducting an open tender process for the 
renewal of these contract post June 2021. 

17. Where in the past these services were jointly commissioned by WSCC and MSDC, in 
the future, starting with the new WSCC contract in July 2021 and future MSDC 
tender processes (post March 2022) the contracts will be independent of each other.  

Risk Management Implications 

18. A Contract is signed at the application stage by organisations seeking funding that 
details the terms and conditions under which the partnership grant is given, including 
the return of all monies to the Council should the purpose for which the funds are 
awarded not materialise. 

Equality and customer service implications 

19. As part of the assessment process, all organisations applying for funding from the 
Council have complied with the required conditions of funding and have the requisite 
policies and procedures in place including any other relevant legislation. 

Legal Implications 

20. The Council is not obliged to provide grant funding, but by virtue of section 1 of the 
Localism Act 2011, it is able to do anything which it considers is likely to achieve the 
promotion of the economic, social or environmental wellbeing of its area. This 
includes the incurring of expenditure, giving financial assistance to any person (or 
organisation) and entering into arrangements or agreements with any person. 

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 43



Background Papers 

21. Cabinet Grants Panel report of 19th October 2020 including agreed Covid19 
Recovery Grant Criteria. 

22. Copies of the original partners grant applications are held on file by the Community 
Service team. 

 

Cabinet - 8 February 2021 44


	Agenda
	4 To confirm Minutes of the previous meeting held on 23 November 2020.
	6 Draft Corporate Plan and Budget for 2021/22.
	7 Budget Management 2020/21 - Progress Report April to December 2020.
	BUDGET MANAGEMENT 2020/21 – PROGRESS REPORT APRIL TO DECEMBER 2020
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS
	Purpose of Report
	Summary
	Recommendations
	REVENUE SPENDING
	Position to the end of December 2020
	Expenditure and Income to date
	Covid-19 related pressures to the end of December 2020
	Update on the Proposed Mitigation of Forecast Overspend
	Miscellaneous
	SPENDING ON CAPITAL PROGRAMME AND REVENUE PROJECTS
	Position to the end of December 2020
	Variances to the 2020/21 Capital Programme and Revenue Projects
	Proposed Variations to the Capital Programme and Revenue Projects
	S106 contributions committed/utilised to the end of December 2020
	FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
	RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS
	EQUALITY AND CUSTOMER SERVICE IMPLICATIONS
	OTHER MATERIAL IMPLICATIONS
	Background Papers

	8 Age UK Partnership Agreements.

